
 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 18, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

AGENDA 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

B.    INVOCATION 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

E.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

F.    ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

1. President 

2. Vice President 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

3. Mr. Norton, Parish Administrator's written report 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

4. Chance McNeely, The Delta Resource Group written report 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

5. Accept the Financial Statements as of December 31, 2023 and Year to Date 

Budget to actual report 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

6. Approve December 18, 2023 Public Hearing, Regular Meeting, and Special 
Meeting; January 2, 2024 Administrative, Budget and Finance, Personnel, Solid 

Waste and Special Meeting 

Page 1



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 18, 2024 

 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

7. Authorize the President to sign a Service Agreement with Revize Software 

Systems for the new website (Approved in the 2024 Budget) 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

8. Authorize the President to sign a resolution ordering and calling a special 
election to be held in the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, to authorize the 

continuation of a special tax therein, making application to the State Bond 
Commission, and providing for other matters in connection therewith. 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

9. Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign agreements with Contract 

Haulers 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

10. Recommends approving the budget amendments for 2023 to comply with the 

local Government Budget Act. 

11. Recommends approving the amended 2023 Budget and the proposed 2024 

budget for the operation of the North Louisiana Criminalistics Laboratory 
Commission 

T.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

12. Recommends approving the Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with Shreveport 
Green for the Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day for February 17, 2024 

U.  ADJOURN 

Page 2



MEMORANDUM 

TO: DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

FROM: The Delta Resource Group 

RE: January Update 

DATE: January 16, 2024 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This memo has been prepared to provide an update on legislative and other governmental 

matters to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

Since the last meeting, the following gubernatorial appointments have been made: 

 

● Secretary of DOTD: Terrence (Joe) Donahue 

 

Terrence (Joe) Donahue, Jr. is a life-long resident of Baton Rouge and recently served 

as the Assistant Attorney General responsible for the Louisiana Department of Justice’s 

Occupational Licensing Review Program.  He began his career in public service in 2004 

at the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality before leaving to attend law 

school.  After maintaining a private practice for nearly a decade, litigating in state and 

federal trials and appellate courts across the country, Donahue returned to state service 

as an attorney for the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development, where 

he held positions in both the Office of General Counsel and the Office of the Secretary.  

Donahue received both his undergraduate degree and law degree from Louisiana State 

University.     

 

● Member of BESE: Judy Armstrong 

 

Dr. Judy Armstrong was born and raised in Alexandria, Louisiana. She began her 

educational career teaching high school and college biology and math. She has 

extensive experience in K – 12 school and district administration as Diocese of Baton 

Rouge Assistant Superintendent, St. Joseph Academy Academic Associate Principal, St. 

Thomas More Catholic School Principal, and Ursuline Academy Principal and 

Curriculum and Assessment Administrator. Her Louisiana Department of Education 

leadership experiences include supervisor of secondary education, program manager for 

research, and regional service director for twelve parishes in Louisiana with a primary 

focus on school improvement opportunities for students, teachers, and administrators. 

She serves as a Consultant for School Improvement to support schools in the analysis 

and alignment of curriculum with mission effectiveness, student performance measures, 

and state and national standards. Dr. Armstrong holds a B.S. degree from Louisiana 

College in Biology and Math, M. Ed. from Louisiana State University in Supervision and 

Administration, Ph.D. from Louisiana State University in Educational Administration and 

Business Management, and a Master of Religious Education from Loyola University.  

 

● Member of BESE: Simone Champagne 

Page 3



Simone has over 46 years of Private and Public Sector experience as well as 

volunteerism. She served for 26 years in the banking sector as an operations officer and 

two decades in public service. She was the first and only woman thus far to hold the 

State Representative District 49 seat.  She also served on the St. Joseph Elementary 

School Board and the Acadiana Renaissance Academy School Board. Simone has 

many years of volunteerism serving on the local and state level, including numerous 

Chambers of Commerce, schools, coaching softball, and serving on many non-profits. 

Simone has been married to Gary for 52 years. They have 5 grown children and 9 

grandchildren. 

 

● Member of BESE: Conrad Appel 

 

Senator Appel was elected to the Louisiana Senate in 2008. From 2012 until 2015 

Senator Conrad Appel was Chairman of the Senate Committee on Education. He also 

served on the Finance, Commerce, Retirement, Judiciary A, and Environmental Quality 

Committees of the Senate. Prior to his political career, he had served as Chairman of 

many public and civic organizations.  He has also appeared as a speaker at several 

national education events. For more than forty years Senator Appel had been the 

President of Construction South, Inc., a general construction contractor. Prior to that, he 

worked at Sharp Electric, Inc as a project engineer and Vice President. He is currently 

President of Construction Management Services Inc. Senator Appel is a graduate of 

Louisiana State University achieving a degree as a Bachelor of Science in Electrical 

Engineering. He is married and has two grown children.       

 

● Chief of Staff: Kyle Ruckert 

 

Kyle Ruckert, a resident of Baton Rouge, currently serves as Transition Director for the 

gubernatorial transition. Ruckert has served as senior advisor to multiple presidential 

elections, numerous statewide elected officials’ campaigns, including both Louisiana 

U.S. Senators, and hundreds of Louisiana State Senate and House races. He has 

almost two decades of senior management experience as Chief of Staff in both the U.S. 

House of Representatives and the U.S. Senate on Capitol Hill. Ruckert graduated from 

Jesuit High School in New Orleans and earned his B.A from Tulane University. 

 

● Executive Counsel to the Governor: Angelique Freel 

 

Angelique Duhon Freel was the Director of the Civil Division for the Louisiana 

Department of Justice, Office of Attorney General Jeff Landry, and served in that 

capacity since 2017 where she oversaw the Collections, Education, Governmental, 

Public Finance and Contracts, Environmental, Lands and Natural Resources, and 

Occupational Review Sections. Her career at the Attorney General’s office has spanned 

three Attorneys Generals. Prior to her tenure with the Louisiana Department of Justice, 

she worked for private law firms handling complex litigation.  She is a former law clerk to 

the Honorable Judge Jimmie C. Peters of the Louisiana Third Circuit Court of Appeal.  

Page 4



Mrs. Freel has more than 20 years of experience handling complex litigation in both 

state and federal courts. Additionally, she has served as general counsel or hearing 

officer on numerous Louisiana administrative boards as well as Louisiana university 

boards, including Nicholls State University, University of Louisiana at Monroe, and 

McNeese State University. She received her bachelor’s degree from Northwestern State 

University and her law degree from Louisiana State University.     

 

● Director of Intergovernmental Relations: Kyle Ardoin 

 

Kyle Ardoin, a native of Ville Platte, served as Louisiana’s 44th Secretary of State since 

May 2018, winning a special election in December 2018 and a full term in November 

2019. As Secretary of State, Secretary Ardoin championed legislation to improve 

Louisiana’s election integrity, increase regulatory transparency, and enhance the state’s 

cybersecurity posture. Prior to serving as Secretary of State, Secretary Ardoin was a 

member of the West Baton Rouge School Board, a lobbyist, and First Assistant 

Secretary of State. He is married to the former Letti Lowe of Port Allen. Together they 

have one daughter, Abbigale, and one grandson, J.J. They attend St. Aloysius Catholic 

Church in Baton Rouge. 

 

● Policy Director: John Kay 

 

John Kay is a native and resident of Shreveport, LA. John was home-schooled through 

high school and attended LSU Shreveport for his undergraduate degree, graduating in 

2010. John has worked locally on numerous political campaigns and efforts including 

those of Senator John Kennedy, the Republican Party of Louisiana, and Congressman 

John Fleming. In addition to campaign work, John also worked for two years in the 

district office of Congressman Fleming.  John returned to Louisiana as a founding staff 

member of the Louisiana chapter of Americans for Prosperity. John served for two years 

as the Deputy State Director of the organization followed by four years leading the 

chapter as the State Director.  John also served as the Vice President for Advocacy at 

the Pelican Institute, leading the group’s advocacy organization named Pelican Action. 

In 2023, John joined Attorney General Jeff Landry’s campaign for governor as the 

Deputy Campaign manager. John and his wife Amanda reside in Baton Rouge with their 

three daughters Jewel, Cecilia, and Austen. 

 

 

● Director of GOHSEP: Jacques Thibodeaux 

 

Jacques Thibodeaux is the son of two teachers who taught him the value of service.  He 

has served citizens in three different careers with extensive service in each venue.  He 

served from 1984-2015 in the U.S. Army- Louisiana National Guard, retiring as a Colonel 

with 31 years of service.  COL Thibodeaux enlisted in the 256th Infantry Brigade as a 

private on his seventeenth birthday and his career culminated as the commander of the 

256th Infantry Brigade Combat Team (3400 soldiers).  He is a combat veteran who 

Page 5



served in Iraq with the 256th.  Jacques Thibodeaux also served 28 years simultaneously 

in the U.S. Marshals from 1991-2019, retiring as a Supervisory Deputy U.S. Marshal.  Of 

his 28 years, 17 years were in four supervisory federal agent law enforcement roles.  

Jacques is currently serving as the City of Thibodaux Director- Office of Emergency 

Preparedness/Special Projects.  He came home in 2019 to the City of Thibodaux in 

continuance of his service in the community where he grew up and lived his entire life.     

 

● Deputy Director of GOHSEP: Neal Fudge 

 

Neal Fudge will be appointed as the Deputy Director of the Governor’s Office of 

Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness (GOHSEP). His is currently 

GOHSEP’s Assistant Deputy Director of Homeland Security and Interoperability and the 

Assistant Deputy Director for Emergency Management, responsible for cyber security, 

geographical information systems, Louisiana Wireless Information Network (LWIN), 

school safety, intelligence and information sharing, critical infrastructure and key 

resources, planning, training, exercises and operations. He also Chairs the State 

Interoperability Executive Committee (SIEC) and holds a position on the LERN board. 

Neal is from St. Francisville, and he is married to Sarah Fudge. They have two children, 

Caroline and Hunter. 

 

● Secretary of DNR: Tyler Gray 

 

Tyler Gray currently serves as the corporate secretary for the Placid Refining Company, 

LLC. Previously, he served as president and general counsel to Louisiana Mid-

Continent’s Oil and Gas Association, an attorney to the Department of Natural 

Resources, Office of Conservation and for the City of New Orleans. He received his B.A. 

in Economics from James Madison University in Virginia, a J.D. from Loyola University in 

New Orleans, a M.B.A. with a specialization in Economics from Louisiana State 

University, and is licensed to practice law in Louisiana. 

 

● Secretary of LWC: Susana Schowen 

 

Susana (Susie) Schowen joined the Louisiana Community and Technical College 

System as the Vice President of Education in 2022. Before LCTCS, she spent over ten 

years with LED FastStart, the workforce development division of Louisiana Economic 

Development. She focuses on building coalitions of industry partners, economic 

developers, and educators to align our programs with the needs of employers and the 

economy, increasing the prosperity of our people and our communities. The LCTCS is 

widely recognized for its highly innovative and employer-responsive approach, 

restructuring its systems to lift individuals out of poverty while driving economic growth, 

and Susie is instrumental to implementing this vision. In her current role, Susie deploys 

millions of dollars in state and federal funding through performance-based models that 

reward results, not promises. She also works across agencies and with regional partners 

to identify inefficiencies in the system, and better align the delivery of social services with 

Page 6



workforce development efforts. Prior to joining LED, Susie held leadership roles with 

several private companies in the technical training and educational services sector. 

Susie has degrees in chemistry from Wellesley College and Columbia University. 

 

● Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Health, Dr. Ralph Abraham 

 

Dr. Ralph Abraham is a practicing family medicine physician in Richland Parish and a 

former three term Congressman for Louisiana’s 5th Congressional District. Throughout 

his almost 30 year career in medicine, Dr. Abraham has seen firsthand the many 

healthcare challenges facing Louisiana. Dr. Abraham graduated from Mangham High 

School before earning his degree at Louisiana State University. He graduated from the 

LSU School of Veterinary Medicine and practiced for 10 years before eventually seeking 

his Medical Doctor degree, which he earned at the LSU School of Medicine in 

Shreveport. Dr. Abraham was a First Lieutenant in the  Army National Guard. He has 

served on humanitarian missions for Free Burma Rangers in Burma, Syria, Iraq and 

Ukraine. He has also volunteered on humanitarian missions in Afghanistan and the 

Amazon for other organizations.  Additionally, he is a fixed-wing and helicopter pilot who 

currently flies reconnaissance missions for the Coast Guard Auxiliary, and he is a 

mission pilot for the Air Force’s Civil Air Patrol Green Flag Program. He’s a certified flight 

instructor and actively works with Pilots for Patients – an organization that provides free 

air transportation to patients needing treatment at medical facilities not available to them 

locally. Dr. Abraham has been married to his wife Dianne for 46 years and they reside in 

Richland Parish. They have three children and ten grandchildren. 

 

● Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries, Madison Sheahan 

 

Madison Sheahan was Team Captain for the Ohio State rowing team and worked 

directly with coach Urban Meyer to develop leadership programs for other Ohio State 

team captains. Over the last three years she has been working directly and indirectly 

with the Governor of South Dakota, Kristi Noem, in leadership positions where she 

worked on legislation relating to wildlife, agriculture, and natural resources. She also 

played a major role in passing one of the strongest bills in the nation protecting women’s 

sports. Madison has a bachelor’s degree in public affairs, public management, 

leadership, and policy and agri-business. She served as an Ohio FFA State Officer. She 

is an avid hunter and loves the outdoors. 

 

● Secretary of the Department of Children and Family Services, David Matlock 

 

David Matlock is a Shreveport native who received his B.A. from Louisiana State 

University in Shreveport and his J.D. from Baylor University. He served as Chief Judge 

of the Juvenile Court for Caddo Parish from 1999-2023 and served as Judge since 1994. 

His juvenile court programs during tenure include Juvenile Drug Court, Family Drug 

Court, Juvenile Mental Health Court, Truancy Court, Sex trafficking Community 

Page 7



Response Team, Specialized Victims Intensive Unit, onsite drug treatment clinic for 

children, S.T.A.R education program, teen court program, Red River Marine. 

 

Special Session: 

 

● The Governor called the Louisiana Legislature into a special session for January 15-24. 

The call includes redrawing congressional and supreme court districts, as well as other 

election and campaign finance issues.  

● There is a high probability that another special session on crime will be called in 

February.  

 

Committee Chairmen: 

 

● Chairs will be announced very soon. For DPPJ, House Ways and Means and House 

Appropriations are very important. Also, Senate Rev & Fisc and Senate Finance.  

 

Funding 

 

● TDRG continues to educate lawmakers about the severance tax issue and is actively 

advocating for DPPJ’s capital outlay request and a long-term solution on severance tax.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 18, 2023 at 5:00 PM  
Public Hearing  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Given by Ross 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by Ross 
 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED CONCERNING FUNDING OF 
VARIOUS POLICE JURY PROGRAMS AND FOR THE PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 

2024 

There were no guest or comments made  

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 

 

Page 35



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 18, 2023 at 5:05 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 
 

D.    PRESENTATION OF ACHIEVEMENTS AND SERVICE AWARDS 

1. Steve Brown - Retirement 

2. Phillip Daniels, Administrator of E911, Serving as Vice President of NENA 911 

since April  

E.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

3. Announcement of Public Meeting 

Notice is hereby given that at its meeting to be held on Tuesday, January 16, 
2024 at 5:00 p.m. at its regular meeting place, the Police Jury Meeting Room of 

Page 36



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

the Police Jury Annex, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield Louisiana, the Police Jury 
of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, plans to consider adopting a 

resolution ordering and calling an election to be held in the Parish of DeSoto, 
State of Louisiana to authorize the renewal of an ad valorem tax therein. 

 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Authorize reimbursing the property owner at 355 Fire Tower Road for  cutting and 

removal of a tree in the Road Right of Way which fell during  a storm 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, 

District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Donald Jackson spoke regarding Item 18 on the agenda 

 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

4. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator 

Michael Norton, Parish Administrator, gave his report 

 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

5. Chance McNeely with Delta Resource Group 

Mr. McNeely presented his report and answered questions posed by individual 

Jurors 
 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

6. Accept the Financial Statements as of November 30, 2023 and Year to Date 
Budget to actual report 

Page 37



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

Ms. Garcia, Parish Treasurer, presented the Financial Report ending November 
30, 2023 and reported one (1) deficit 

 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

7. Approve the November 20, 2023 Regular Meeting, November 27, 2023 Budget 

and Finance Committee Meeting, November 28, 2023 Budget and Finance 
Committee Meeting, December 4, 2023 Administrative, Budget and Finance, 

Buildings and Properties, Personnel, Policy and Procedures, Solid Waste, 
Insurance, Road and Special Meeting 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

8. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution requesting the designation of 
certain census tract Block Groups enumerated below as Enterprise Zones, for 

participation in the Enterprise Zone Program Administered by the Louisiana 
Department of Economic Development and sign the Enterprise Zone Program 
Approval Letter 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 
District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Abstaining: District 4B Burrell 

 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

9. Authorize the President to sign the Indemnification with Louisiana Midstream 
Gas Services LLC for access to their pipeline on the north side of Mundy Landfill 

to perform erosion control. 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

Page 38



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

10. Authorize reimbursing the property owner at 355 Fire Tower Road for cutting 
and removal of a tree in the Road Right of Way which fell during a storm 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

11. Approve a Resolution adopting an Operating Budget of Revenue and 
Expenditure for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2024 and Ending 

December 31, 2024. 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

12. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution appointing Michael 

Rister as a director to the board of the Louisiana Local Government 
Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority for a two year 
term 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

13. Recommends approving the 2024 Holiday Schedule 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

14. Recommends approving the 2024 Meeting Schedule 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

15. Recommends approving the 2024 Liquor License Renewals 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 3 Baker, District 4B 

Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 

Page 39



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

Ross 
Voting Abstaining: District 2 Kennington, District 4A Fuller 

 

16. Recommends approving the 2024 DeSoto Parish Tourism Commission Budget 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

17. Recommends selecting Thomas, Cunningham, Broadway and Todtenbier, CPA's 
for the 2023-2025 audits 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 

District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 4B Burrell 

 

T.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES & PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

18. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a 3 year renewal service 

agreement with Johnson Controls for HVAC and Controls at the Courthouse with 
recommended changes per legal counsel 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

U.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

19. Recommends approving the Property and Casualty and Workers Compensation 
Insurance for 2024 

Motion to use AmGuard Insurance for Property and Casualty and LUBA 
Indemnity Insurance for Workers Compensation. 

 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

Page 40



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

V.   PERSONNEL ITEMS 

20. Recommends approving the Compensation Study 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

21. Recommends approving the new step increase schedule 

Alternate motion that existing employees stay at the 6 step increase and new 
hires start at the 12 step increase 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 2 Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 

4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, 
District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1C Parker 

 

W.    ROAD ITEMS 

22. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Change Order No. 1 to 

include asphalt resurfacing on Cody Lane 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 5 Roe. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

23. Recommends authorizing the President to sign Change Order No. 3 for sheet 

pile headwall on Mounce Road (2016 FEMA) 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 

 

24. Recommends authorizing the Parish Administrator to sign the agreement 

between owner and engineer for professional service on Brazzel Road. 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B 
Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 5 Roe 

 

Page 41



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

25. Recommends authorizing compensation to Pat Loftus for fence replacement on 
Powell Road as per the servitude agreement 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

X.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

26. Recommends accepting the price increase for Municipal Solid Waste from 
Bossier per the recommendation of Live Oak from $23.00 per ton to $28.00 per 

ton for 2024, $30.50 per ton for 2025, and $33.00 per ton for 2026. 

Motion made by District 5 Roe, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, 
District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell 
 

Y.  ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 42



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 02, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Administrative Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A, Chairman Jimmy Holmes 
District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 

District 1B B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.   INVOCATION 

Given by District 6 Ross. 
 

C.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by District 6 Ross. 
 

D.   PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

Nothing to report 

 

E.    LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

Nothing to report 

 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

Page 43



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 02, 2024 

 

None 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

H.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

1. Authorize the Administrator to sign agreements with Contract Haulers.  

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Kennington, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C 
Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

I.     ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

 

Page 44



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 02, 2024 at 5:01 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

OFFICERS 
Greg Baker, Chairman, Kyle Kennington, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Richard Fuller and B. D. 

Mitchell 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 

District 2 Kyle Kennington 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

 
ABSENT 

District 1B B. D. Mitchell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Approve the budget amendments for 2023 to comply with the Local 

Government Budget Act. 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 2 Kennington, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 4A Fuller 
 

2. Approve the amended 2023 budget and the proposed 2024 budget for the 
operation of the North Louisiana Criminalistics Laboratory Commission 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 2 Kennington, District 4D Boyd-

Page 45



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 02, 2024 

 

Simpson, District 4A Fuller 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
 

Page 46



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 02, 2024 at 5:02 PM 
 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, 

Mansfield, LA 71052  101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052 

 

MINUTES 

Jeri Burrell, Chairwoman, Keith Parker, Ernel Jones, Kyle Kennington, and Trina Boyd-

Simpson 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 4B, Chairwoman Jeri Burrell 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Kyle Kennington 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    PERSONNEL ITEMS 

1. Accept the recommendation of the Parish Administrator and Human Resource 

Director for the Solid Waste Superintendent. 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
Voting Yea: District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson 
Voting Nay: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

 

Page 47



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

December 18, 2023 at 5:30 PM  
Special Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Rodriguez Ross, President • Greg Baker, Vice President 
Michael Norton, Administrator • Jodi Zeigler, Secretary • Liliana Garcia, Treasurer 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 

 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

E.    ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

F.    NEW BUSINESS 

Page 48



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury December 18, 2023 

 

1. Executive Session in compliance with La R.S. 42:17(1); discuss the character 
and professional competence of a parish employee; however no final or binding 

action shall be taken during the executive session. 

Mr. Norton asked the session be closed  
 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

2. Motion to reconvene Executive Session 

No action was taken 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, District 6 Ross 
 

G.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
 

Page 49



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 02, 2024 at 5:30 PM  
Special Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Rodriguez Ross, President • Greg Baker, Vice President 
Michael Norton, Administrator • Jodi Zeigler, Secretary • Lilliana Garcia, Treasurer 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 2 Kyle Kennington 

District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Reggie Roe 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 

 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

E.    ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

F.    NEW BUSINESS 

1. Recommends accepting the recommendation of the Parish Administrator and 
Human Resource Director for the Solid Waste Superintendent. 

Page 50



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 02, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 2 Kennington. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker, District 2 Kennington, 

District 3 Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Roe, 
District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 4B Burrell 

Voting Abstaining: District 4A Fuller 
 

G.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 2 Kennington, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 51



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 02, 2024 at 5:03 PM  
Solid Waste Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Greg Baker, Chairman, B. D. Mitchell, Ernel Jones, Jimmy Holmes and Richard Fuller 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

 
ABSENT 
District 1B B. D. Mitchell 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

1. Approve the Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with Shreveport Green for the 

Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day for February 17, 2023 

Date needed to be February 17, 2024 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones, District 1A Holmes, 
District 4A Fuller 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

 

Page 52



                                                                                                                                                     Page 1 of 6 

 

Revize Web Services Sales Agreement 
 

This Sales Agreement is between  DeSoto Parish Police Jury, LA (“CLIENT”) and Revize LLC, aka Revize 
Software Systems, (“Revize”).       Federal Tax ID# 20-5000179                            Date: 1-4-2023 

 

CLIENT INFORMATION:   DeSoto Parish Police Jury REVIZE LLC: 

Company Name: DeSoto Parish Police Jury Revize Software Systems 

Company Address: 101 Franklin Street 150 Kirts Blvd.  

Company City/State/Zip: Mansfield, LA  71052 Troy, MI  48084 

Contact Name: 
Donald Jackson 
djackson@desotoppj.com 
 318-465-2314 

248-269-9263 

Billing Dept. Contact:   

Client Website Address: https://www.desotoppj.com/  
 

The CLIENT agrees to purchase the following products and services provided by REVIZE: 

Quantity 
 

Description  
Price 

1 Phase 1 - Project Planning and Analysis, SOW, onetime fee: 
$750 

1 

Phase 2 – Discovery & Design from Scratch, onetime fee: 

• 1 mockup with up to 3 rounds of changes 

• Home page template and inner page design and layout.  

• Includes Responsive Web Design 

• Departmental Page  

$3,000 

1 

 

Phase 3 & 4 – Revize Template Development, onetime fee: 

• Set-up all CMS modules listed in this agreement 

• Integration with all 3rd party web applications  

 $4,000 

1 
 

Phase 5 – Quality Assurance Testing, onetime fee: 
Included 

1 

 

Phase 6 – 

• Site map development/content reorganization and migration from old website 

into new website including spell checking and style corrections for 100 pages 

and Documents (approximate amount on your website today). To help remove 

stale content, Revize will not me moving over old announcements, events or 

calendar items. 

$1,000 

1 
Phase 7 – Content editing and site administration training on- remote (one day 

session up to 8 hours) 
$1,000 

1 Phase 8 – Go Live: 
Included Page 53



                                                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 6 

 

1 
Revize Annual Software Subscription, Tech Support, CMS Updates, Website Hosting, 

50GB website storage, 100GB/Month Bandwidth, SSL Certificate pre-paid annual fee: 
$3,500 

1 
Grand Total  

$13,250 
$3,500/year 

 
 
  
 
 
Payment Schedule  
 

Payment Amount Includes 

$13,250 Year 1 Development Support, Hosting 

 
$3,500 Year 2 Support and Hosting 

 
$3,500 

 
Year 3 Support and Hosting 

 
$3,500 Year 4 Support and Hosting 

 
Terms: 
 
 

1. Payments: All Invoices are due upon receipt. Work begins upon receiving initial payment. 

2.  Revize requires a check for $13,250 to start Phase 2 of this project.  

3. Additional content migration, if requested, is available for $3 per web page or document. 

4. Additional bandwidth is available at $360 per year for each additional 50GB per month. 

5. Additional website storage is available at $1,000 per year for each additional 5GB website storage. 

6. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed under, the laws of the 

State of Louisiana.  

7. Both parties must agree in writing to any changes or additions to this Sales Agreement. 

8. Website go live date to be no later than August 1, 2024. Client understands that project completion date is 

highly dependent on their timely communication with Revize. For project timeline and details please refer to 

our proposal dated 6-27-2023. Client also agrees and understands that;  

a. The primary communication tool for this project and future tech support is the Revize customer 

portal found at https://support.revize.com. 

b. During the project, Client will respond to Revize inquiries within 48 hours of the request to avoid 

any delay in the project timeline.   

9. Revize will provide a free redesign of the website in year 5 of the agreement. This assumes the customer 

agrees to five consecutive years of annual software subscription, tech support, CMS updates, and hosting. 

10. Client owns design, content, and will receive periodic updates to the CMS for the life of the contract. 

11. Unless otherwise agreed, Revize does not migrate irrelevant records, calendar events, news items, bid 

results, low quality images, or data considered non-conforming to new website layout. 

12. Storage is limited only to relevant website data.  Page 54

https://support.revize.com/


                                                                                                                                                     Page 3 of 6 

 
 

 

Enterprise Revize CMS License 
 

As part of this agreement Revize Software Systems, LLC. provides to the Client a full Enterprise Revize 

CMS Software license. This software is a proprietary software built and maintained by Revize Software 

Systems LLC., and is intended to allow for the Client to easily update the content of their website. Client 

agrees that this license will only be used to maintain the websites included in this agreement. Sharing of 

the content management system, by the Client, with other entities not identified in this agreement is 

prohibited.  

Revize will maintain, update, and host the Revize CMS during the contract period. In the event that the 

contract is terminated, for any reason, Revize will provide the latest version of the Revize CMS to the 

Client. This system will then have the ability to be hosted and used by the Client as long as they wish. 

Revize will provide reasonable support in transferring the CMS system to the Client’s decided upon 

hosting architecture.  

Products Client Owns Include: 

 
· Revize CMS License 

· Hosted Website 

· Source Files 

· All Included Revize Web Applications  

· Design & Page Content 

 

 

 

AGREED TO BY:     CLIENT                        REVIZE 

 

Signature of Authorized Person:                            

 

Name of Authorized Person:                 ______ Dylan Johnston        ___ 

 

Title of Authorized Person                              Account Manager  ___ 

 

Date:                                       

 

 

Please sign and return to:             dylan@revize.com                     Fax 1-866-346-8880 

 

Page 55



                                                                                                                                                     Page 4 of 6 

 

Revize will integrate the following web applications into your website: 
 

 

• Citizen’s Communication Center Apps 

• Citizen’s Engagement Center Apps 

• Staff Productivity Apps 

• Site Administration and Security Features 

• Mobile Device and Accessibility Features 

 

Citizen’s Communication Center Apps 

• Home Page Alert 

• E-Notification Center with Email and Text Alerts 

• Document Center with Keyword Search 

• FAQs with Keyword Search 

• News Center with Facebook/Twitter Integration 

• “Share This” Social Media Sharing App  

• Online and Interactive Fillable Web Forms 

• Photo Galleries 

• Quick Link Buttons 

• Revize Web Calendars - unlimited 

• Sliding Feature Bar 

• Language Translator – over 95 languages 

 

Citizen’s Engagement Center Apps 

• Citizen Request Center with Captcha 

• Online Bill Pay via Revize partner 

• RSS Feed 

Staff Productivity Apps 

• Department Home Page 

• Agenda Posting Center 

• Job Posting Center with interactive Fillable Forms 

• Image Manager Page 56



                                                                                                                                                     Page 5 of 6 

 

• iCal Integration 

• Link Checker 

• Menu Manager 

• Online/Interactive Fillable Form Builder 

• Staff Directory with Keyword Search 

• Website Content Archiving 

• Website Content Scheduling 

Site Administration and Security Features 

• Audit Trail 

• Auto Site Map Generator 

• Drag and Drop Menu Management 

• Drag and Drop Picture Management 

• Drag and Drop Document Management 

• History Log 

• URL Redirect Setup 

• Roles and Permission-based Security Mode 

• Secure Site Gateway 

• Unique Login/Password for each Content Editor 

• Web Statistics and Analytics 

• Workflows by Department 

 

 

Mobile Device and Accessibility Features 

• ADA Compliant WCAG 2.1 AA 

• ADA Accessability Widget 

• Responsive Website Design (RWD) for great mobile viewing 

 

 

  

Page 57



                                                                                                                                                     Page 6 of 6 

 

Service Level Agreement 
 

Maximum Response Times via Severity Level 

• 1 hour for crisis issues 

• 4-6 hours for critical issues    

• 24 hours for normal issues 

 

Crisis issues are defined as when a website error renders the CMS program or website completely unusable or 

nearly unusable or introduces a high degree of operational risk and no workaround is available. Till this every error 

is resolved, the website is essentially halted. A large number of users and or core program functionality a severely 

impacted.  

 

Critical issues are defined as website errors that are an inconvenience or causes a consistent behavior of the 

website, which does not impede the normal functioning of the website. It could be an error that occurs consistently 

and affects non-essential functions and is an inconvenience which impacts a small number of users. May also 

contain visual errors for the graphical display of the website that is not ideal but still functioning correctly. 

 

Normal issues are defined as an error that has a small degree of significance or is a minor cosmetic issue, or is a 

one-off case. A one-off case occurs when the error occurs and cannot be reproduced easily. These are errors that do 

not impact the daily use of the website. A low error is something that does not affect normal use, and can be 

accepted for a period of time, but user would eventually want changed. 

 

Technical Support Escalation: 

If an issue cannot be remedied by the Tech Support technician within 3 days, it will be escalated to the CTO, Ray 

Akshaya.  If the problem is not resolved within 3 business days, then the Business Development Director, Joseph 

Nagrant, will assemble a team to work on the issue and have a conference call with the client explaining the 

resolution path the company will take to resolve the issue. If additional time is needed, the Business Development 

Director will contact the client and notify the client with an explanation and a follow up date as agreed by both the 

client and Revize.  

 

Revize Support 

• 8 a.m. – 8 p.m. EST Phone Support (Monday thru Friday) 

• 24X7X365 Portal & Email Support 

• Dedicated support staff to provide assistance and answer all questions 

• Training refreshers 

• Video tutorials and online training manual 

 

Page 58



 

 

 The following resolution was offered by __________________________________ and seconded 

by _________________________________: 

 RESOLUTION 
 

A resolution ordering and calling a special election to be held in the Parish of DeSoto, 

State of Louisiana, to authorize the continuation of a special tax therein, making 

application to the State Bond Commission, and providing for other matters in connection 

therewith. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the 

"Governing Authority"), acting as the governing authority of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the 

"Parish"), that: 

 

 SECTION 1. Election Call.  Subject to the approval of the State Bond Commission, and under 

the authority conferred by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana of 1974, including Article VI, 

Section 26 thereof, the applicable provisions of the Louisiana Election Code, and other constitutional and 

statutory authority, a special election is hereby called and ordered to be held in the Parish on 

SATURDAY, APRIL 27, 2024, between the hours of seven o'clock (7:00) a.m. and eight o'clock (8:00) 

p.m., in accordance with the provisions of La. R.S. 18:541, and at the said election there shall be 

submitted to all registered voters qualified and entitled to vote at the said election under the Constitution 

and laws of this State and the Constitution of the United States, the following proposition, to-wit: 

 

 PROPOSITION 

(MILLAGE CONTINUATION) 

 

Shall the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the "Parish"), continue to levy a 5.21 mills 

tax on all the property subject to taxation in the Parish (an estimated $4,776,000 

reasonably expected at this time to be collected from the levy of the tax for an entire 

year), for a period of 10 years, beginning with the year 2026 and ending with the year 

2035, for the purpose of collecting and disposing of solid waste, including operating and 

maintaining the Parish's solid waste landfill facilities and equipment, which facilities and 

equipment may receive and dispose of solid waste from within and from without the 

Parish, said millage to represent a .10 mills increase (due to reappraisal) over the 5.11 

mills tax authorized to be levied through the year 2025 pursuant to an election held on 

May 2, 2015? 

 

 SECTION 2. Publication of Notice of Election.  A Notice of Special Election shall be 

published in the official journal of the Parish once a week for four consecutive weeks, with the first 

publication to be made not less than forty-five (45) days nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the date 

of the election, which Notice shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as "Exhibit A" and 

incorporated herein by reference the same as if it were set forth herein in full. 

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the publication of the Notice of Election, the President is 

authorized and directed to make any amendments to the foregoing proposition that may be required to 

comply with any state or federal regulatory agencies. 

 

 SECTION 3. Canvass.  This Governing Authority shall meet at its regular meeting place, the 

Police Jury Meeting Room of the Police Jury Annex, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana, on 

MONDAY, MAY 20, 2024, at FIVE O'CLOCK (5:00) P.M., and shall then and there in open and 

public session proceed to examine and canvass the returns and declare the results of the said special 

election. 

Page 59



 

 

 

 SECTION 4. Polling Places.  The polling places for the precincts in the Parish are hereby 

designated as the polling places at which to hold the said election, and the Commissioners-in-Charge and 

Commissioners, respectively, will be the same persons as those designated in accordance with law. 

 

 SECTION 5. Election Commissioners; Voting Machines.  The officers designated to serve as 

Commissioners-in-Charge and Commissioners pursuant to Section 4 hereof, or such substitutes therefor 

as may be selected and designated in accordance with La. R.S. 18:1287, shall hold the said special 

election as herein provided, and shall make due returns of said election for the meeting of the Governing 

Authority to be held as provided in Section 3 hereof.  All registered voters in the Parish will be entitled to 

vote at the special election, and voting machines shall be used. 

 

 SECTION 6. Authorization of Officers.  The Secretary of the Governing Authority is hereby 

empowered, authorized and directed to arrange for and to furnish to said election officers in ample time 

for the holding of said election, the necessary equipment, forms and other paraphernalia essential to the 

proper holding of said election and the President and/or Secretary of the Governing Authority are further 

authorized, empowered and directed to take any and all further action required by State and/or Federal 

law to arrange for the election. 

 

 SECTION 7. Furnishing Election Call to Election Officials.  Certified copies of this resolution 

shall be forwarded to the Secretary of State, the Clerk of Court and Ex-Officio Parish Custodian of Voting 

Machines of DeSoto Parish and the Registrar of Voters of DeSoto Parish, as notification of the special 

election, in order that each may prepare for said election and perform their respective functions as 

required by law. 

 

 SECTION 8. Application to State Bond Commission.  Application is made to the State Bond 

Commission for consent and authority to hold the special election as herein provided, and in the event 

said election carries for further consent and authority to continue to levy and collect the special tax 

provided for therein.  A certified copy of this resolution shall be forwarded to the State Bond Commission 

on behalf of this Governing Authority, together with a letter requesting the prompt consideration and 

approval of this application. 

 

This resolution having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 

 

 YEAS:  

 

 

 NAYS: 

 

 ABSENT:  

 

 And the resolution was declared adopted on this, the 16th day of January, 2024. 

 

 

      

 Secretary   President 

Page 60



 

 

 EXHIBIT "A" 
 

 NOTICE OF SPECIAL ELECTION 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of a resolution adopted by the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, 

State of Louisiana (the "Governing Authority"), acting as the governing authority of the Parish of DeSoto, 

State of Louisiana (the "Parish"), on January 16, 2024, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special 

election will be held within the Parish on SATURDAY, APRIL 27, 2024, and that at the said election 

there will be submitted to all registered voters in the Parish qualified and entitled to vote at the said 

election under the Constitution and Laws of the State of Louisiana and the Constitution of the United 

States, the following proposition, to-wit: 

 

 PROPOSITION 

(MILLAGE CONTINUATION) 

 

Shall the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the "Parish"), continue to levy a 5.21 mills 

tax on all the property subject to taxation in the Parish (an estimated $4,776,000 

reasonably expected at this time to be collected from the levy of the tax for an entire 

year), for a period of 10 years, beginning with the year 2026 and ending with the year 

2035, for the purpose of collecting and disposing of solid waste, including operating and 

maintaining the Parish's solid waste landfill facilities and equipment, which facilities and 

equipment may receive and dispose of solid waste from within and from without the 

Parish, said millage to represent a .10 mills increase (due to reappraisal) over the 5.11 

mills tax authorized to be levied through the year 2025 pursuant to an election held on 

May 2, 2015? 

 

 Said special election will be held at each and every polling place in the Parish of DeSoto, which 

polls will open at seven o'clock (7:00) a.m. and close at eight o'clock (8:00) p.m., in accordance with the 

provisions of La. R.S. 18:541. 

 

 The polling places at the precincts in the Parish are hereby designated as the polling places at 

which to hold the said election, and the Commissioners-in-Charge and Commissioners, respectively, shall 

be those persons designated according to law. 

 

 The estimated cost of this election as determined by the Secretary of State based upon the 

provisions of Chapter 8-A of Title 18 and actual costs of similar elections is $106,600. 

 

 Notice is further given that a portion of the monies collected from the tax described in the 

Proposition shall be remitted to certain state and statewide retirement systems in the manner required by 

law. 

 

 The said special election will be held in accordance with the applicable provisions of Chapter 5 

and Chapter 6-A of Title 18 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended, and other 

constitutional and statutory authority, and the officers appointed to hold the said election, as provided in 

this Notice of Special Election, or such substitutes therefor as may be selected and designated in 

accordance with La. R.S. 18:1287, will make due returns thereof to said Governing Authority, and 

NOTICE IS HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that the Governing Authority will meet at its regular meeting 

place, the Police Jury Meeting Room of the Police Jury Annex, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana, 

on MONDAY, MAY 20, 2024, at FIVE O'CLOCK (5:00) P.M., and shall then and there in open and 

public session proceed to examine and canvass the returns and declare the results of the said special 

election.  All registered voters of the Parish are entitled to vote at said special election and voting 

machines will be used. 

Page 61



 

 

 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

PARISH OF DESOTO 

 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the 

"Governing Authority"), the governing authority of the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the 

"Parish"), do hereby certify that the foregoing pages constitute a true and correct copy of the proceedings 

taken by the Governing Authority on January 16, 2024, ordering and calling a special election to be held 

in the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, to authorize the continuation of a special tax therein, making 

application to the State Bond Commission, and providing for other matters in connection therewith. 

 IN FAITH WHEREOF, witness my official signature at Mansfield, Louisiana, on this, the 16th 

day of January, 2024. 

 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Secretary 

Page 62



 

 NOTICE OF SPECIAL ELECTION 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of a resolution adopted by the Police Jury of the Parish of DeSoto, 

State of Louisiana (the "Governing Authority"), acting as the governing authority of the Parish of DeSoto, 

State of Louisiana (the "Parish"), on January 16, 2024, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special 

election will be held within the Parish on SATURDAY, APRIL 27, 2024, and that at the said election 

there will be submitted to all registered voters in the Parish qualified and entitled to vote at the said 

election under the Constitution and Laws of the State of Louisiana and the Constitution of the United 

States, the following proposition, to-wit: 

 

 PROPOSITION 

(MILLAGE CONTINUATION) 

 

Shall the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana (the "Parish"), continue to levy a 5.21 mills 

tax on all the property subject to taxation in the Parish (an estimated $4,776,000 

reasonably expected at this time to be collected from the levy of the tax for an entire 

year), for a period of 10 years, beginning with the year 2026 and ending with the year 

2035, for the purpose of collecting and disposing of solid waste, including operating and 

maintaining the Parish's solid waste landfill facilities and equipment, which facilities and 

equipment may receive and dispose of solid waste from within and from without the 

Parish, said millage to represent a .10 mills increase (due to reappraisal) over the 5.11 

mills tax authorized to be levied through the year 2025 pursuant to an election held on 

May 2, 2015? 

 

 Said special election will be held at each and every polling place in the Parish of DeSoto, which 

polls will open at seven o'clock (7:00) a.m. and close at eight o'clock (8:00) p.m., in accordance with the 

provisions of La. R.S. 18:541. 

 

 The polling places at the precincts in the Parish are hereby designated as the polling places at 

which to hold the said election, and the Commissioners-in-Charge and Commissioners, respectively, shall 

be those persons designated according to law. 

 

 The estimated cost of this election as determined by the Secretary of State based upon the 

provisions of Chapter 8-A of Title 18 and actual costs of similar elections is $106,600. 

 

 Notice is further given that a portion of the monies collected from the tax described in the 

Proposition shall be remitted to certain state and statewide retirement systems in the manner required by 

law. 

 

 The said special election will be held in accordance with the applicable provisions of Chapter 5 

and Chapter 6-A of Title 18 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended, and other 

constitutional and statutory authority, and the officers appointed to hold the said election, as provided in 

this Notice of Special Election, or such substitutes therefor as may be selected and designated in 

accordance with La. R.S. 18:1287, will make due returns thereof to said Governing Authority, and 

NOTICE IS HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that the Governing Authority will meet at its regular meeting 

place, the Police Jury Meeting Room of the Police Jury Annex, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana, 

on MONDAY, MAY 20, 2024, at FIVE O'CLOCK (5:00) P.M., and shall then and there in open and 

public session proceed to examine and canvass the returns and declare the results of the said special 

election.  All registered voters of the Parish are entitled to vote at said special election and voting 

machines will be used. 

Page 63



Hauling Agreement 
 
The following parties: 
 

Company:  Freeman Trucking             

Address:  538 Sally Ann Drive      

City, State, Zip Code: Shreveport, La. 71106                   

Contact Name: R.E. Freeman Sr.           

Phone:       318-564-0374                                 

 
hereinafter referred to as Contractor, and 
 
  DeSoto Parish Police Jury  

P.O. Box 898  
Mansfield, Louisiana, 71052 

 
hereinafter referred to as Owner, agree as follows: 
 

1. 
 

Contractor will provide 12-16 cubic yard dump trucks with driver to Owner to haul asphalt and other bulk materials to various road 
projects in DeSoto Parish for a period of one year (2024) to deliver the materials to the specified location in a timely manner.  

 
2. 
 

The Owner, through the Road Superintendent, or his designee, agrees to notify Contractor by phone when hauling services are 
needed (24-hour advanced notice when possible). 

 
3. 

 
The Contractor will exercise reasonable care to operate Contractor’s equipment and vehicles in a safe manner while on the Police 

Jury property/projects. 
 

4. 
 

The Contractor shall provide proof of the following (minimum) insurance coverage: 
 

a) Workers' Compensation - Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
Louisiana. 

b) Commercial General Liability - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 
c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

 
5. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $95.00 for each hour or portion thereof the truck and driver are 
requested beginning from the time of departure from the Contractor's place of business (maximum 45 minutes before Owner's required arrival 
time) and ending upon departure from project. This hourly rate will NOT apply to any hauling services for the purposes of stockpiling 
materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's 
approval of invoice. 

 
           6. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $10/ton for hauling services from the Mansfield yard, located at 196 
Trenton Rd., Mansfield, LA 71052, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
           7. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $12/ton for hauling services from the Shreveport yard, located at 3950 
W. 70th, Shreveport, LA 71108, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
 

 Signed on the _____ day of January 2024.  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:     DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY: 
 
 
            
Contractor Signature    Parish Administrator 
 
R.E. Freeman Sr.          Michael Norton                      
Contractor Typed Name    Typed Name 
 
                        
Date      Date 

 
 

Page 64



Hauling Agreement 
 
The following parties: 
 

Company:  U C Me Trucking             

Address:  788 Hwy 3248      

City, State, Zip Code: Mansfield, La. 71052                   

Contact Name: Melvin Manson          

Phone:       318-461-3447                                 

 
hereinafter referred to as Contractor, and 
 
  DeSoto Parish Police Jury  

P.O. Box 898  
Mansfield, Louisiana, 71052 

 
hereinafter referred to as Owner, agree as follows: 
 

1. 
 

Contractor will provide 12-16 cubic yard dump trucks with driver to Owner to haul asphalt and other bulk materials to various road 
projects in DeSoto Parish for a period of one year (2024) to deliver the materials to the specified location in a timely manner.  

 
2. 
 

The Owner, through the Road Superintendent, or his designee, agrees to notify Contractor by phone when hauling services are 
needed (24-hour advanced notice when possible). 

 
3. 

 
The Contractor will exercise reasonable care to operate Contractor’s equipment and vehicles in a safe manner while on the Police 

Jury property/projects. 
 

4. 
 

The Contractor shall provide proof of the following (minimum) insurance coverage: 
 

a) Workers' Compensation - Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
Louisiana. 

b) Commercial General Liability - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 
c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

 
5. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $95.00 for each hour or portion thereof the truck and driver are 
requested beginning from the time of departure from the Contractor's place of business (maximum 45 minutes before Owner's required arrival 
time) and ending upon departure from project. This hourly rate will NOT apply to any hauling services for the purposes of stockpiling 
materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's 
approval of invoice. 

 
           6. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $10/ton for hauling services from the Mansfield yard, located at 196 
Trenton Rd., Mansfield, LA 71052, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
           7. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $12/ton for hauling services from the Shreveport yard, located at 3950 
W. 70th, Shreveport, LA 71108, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
 Signed on the _____ day of January 2024.  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:     DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY: 
 
 
            
Contractor Signature    Parish Administrator 
 
Melvin Manson                       Michael Norton                                    
Contractor Typed Name    Typed Name 
 
                                     
Date      Date 

 
 

 

Page 65



Hauling Agreement 
 
The following parties: 
 

Company:  WJL Enterprise              

Address:  1527 Jessie Latin Rd      

City, State, Zip Code: Gloster, La. 71030                  

Contact Name: Wilbert Latin            

Phone:       318-402-1125                                 

 
hereinafter referred to as Contractor, and 
 
  DeSoto Parish Police Jury  

P.O. Box 898  
Mansfield, Louisiana, 71052 

 
hereinafter referred to as Owner, agree as follows: 
 

1. 
 

Contractor will provide 12-16 cubic yard dump trucks with driver to Owner to haul asphalt and other bulk materials to various road 
projects in DeSoto Parish for a period of one year (2024) to deliver the materials to the specified location in a timely manner.  

 
2. 
 

The Owner, through the Road Superintendent, or his designee, agrees to notify Contractor by phone when hauling services are 
needed (24-hour advanced notice when possible). 

 
3. 

 
The Contractor will exercise reasonable care to operate Contractor’s equipment and vehicles in a safe manner while on the Police 

Jury property/projects. 
 

4. 
 

The Contractor shall provide proof of the following (minimum) insurance coverage: 
 

a) Workers' Compensation - Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
Louisiana. 

b) Commercial General Liability - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 
c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

 
5. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $95.00 for each hour or portion thereof the truck and driver are 
requested beginning from the time of departure from the Contractor's place of business (maximum 45 minutes before Owner's required arrival 
time) and ending upon departure from project. This hourly rate will NOT apply to any hauling services for the purposes of stockpiling 
materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's 
approval of invoice. 

 
           6. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $10/ton for hauling services from the Mansfield yard, located at 196 
Trenton Rd., Mansfield, LA 71052, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
           7. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $12/ton for hauling services from the Shreveport yard, located at 3950 
W. 70th, Shreveport, LA 71108, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
 Signed on the _____ day of January 2024.  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:     DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY: 
 
 
            
Contractor Signature    Parish Administrator 
 
Wilbert Latin                             Michael Norton                                    
Contractor Typed Name    Typed Name 
 
                                     
Date      Date 
 
 

Page 66



Hauling Agreement 
 
The following parties: 
 

Company:  Henderson Trucking             

Address:  133 Modely Rd      

City, State, Zip Code: Keatchie, La. 71046                   

Contact Name: Brady Henderson           

Phone:       318-286-9031                                 

 
hereinafter referred to as Contractor, and 
 
  DeSoto Parish Police Jury  

P.O. Box 898  
Mansfield, Louisiana, 71052 

 
hereinafter referred to as Owner, agree as follows: 
 

1. 
 

Contractor will provide 12-16 cubic yard dump trucks with driver to Owner to haul asphalt and other bulk materials to various road 
projects in DeSoto Parish for a period of one year (2024) to deliver the materials to the specified location in a timely manner.  

 
2. 
 

The Owner, through the Road Superintendent, or his designee, agrees to notify Contractor by phone when hauling services are 
needed (24-hour advanced notice when possible). 

 
3. 

 
The Contractor will exercise reasonable care to operate Contractor’s equipment and vehicles in a safe manner while on the Police 

Jury property/projects. 
 

4. 
 

The Contractor shall provide proof of the following (minimum) insurance coverage: 
 

a) Workers' Compensation - Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
Louisiana. 

b) Commercial General Liability - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 
c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 

 
5. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $95.00 for each hour or portion thereof the truck and driver are 
requested beginning from the time of departure from the Contractor's place of business (maximum 45 minutes before Owner's required arrival 
time) and ending upon departure from project. This hourly rate will NOT apply to any hauling services for the purposes of stockpiling 
materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's 
approval of invoice. 

 
           6. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $10/ton for hauling services from the Mansfield yard, located at 196 
Trenton Rd., Mansfield, LA 71052, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
           7. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $12/ton for hauling services from the Shreveport yard, located at 3950 
W. 70th, Shreveport, LA 71108, when the hauling services are for stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul 
charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
 

 Signed on the _____ day of January 2024.  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:     DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY: 
 
 
            
Contractor Signature    Parish Administrator 
 
Brady Henderson           Michael Norton                      
Contractor Typed Name    Typed Name 
 
                        

Date      Date 

 

Page 67



Hauling Agreement 
 
The following parties: 
 

Company:  Louise Trucking             

Address:  395 Cedar Hill Rd      

City, State, Zip Code: Grand Cane, La. 71032                   

Contact Name: Eugene Washington           

Phone:       318-871-7990                                 

 
hereinafter referred to as Contractor, and 
 
  DeSoto Parish Police Jury  

P.O. Box 898  
Mansfield, Louisiana, 71052 

 
hereinafter referred to as Owner, agree as follows: 
 

1. 
 

Contractor will provide 12-16 cubic yard dump trucks with driver to Owner to haul asphalt and other bulk materials to 
various road projects in DeSoto Parish for a period of one year (2024) to deliver the materials to the specified location in a 
timely manner.  

 
2. 
 

The Owner, through the Road Superintendent, or his designee, agrees to notify Contractor by phone when hauling 
services are needed (24-hour advanced notice when possible). 

 
3. 

 
The Contractor will exercise reasonable care to operate Contractor’s equipment and vehicles in a safe manner while 

on the Police Jury property/projects. 
 

4. 
 

The Contractor shall provide proof of the following (minimum) insurance coverage: 
 

a) Workers' Compensation - Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the Labor Code of 
the State of Louisiana. 

b) Commercial General Liability - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 
c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance - Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000.00 per 

occurrence. 
 

5. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $95.00 for each hour or portion thereof the truck and 
driver are requested beginning from the time of departure from the Contractor's place of business (maximum 45 minutes 
before Owner's required arrival time) and ending upon departure from project. This hourly rate will NOT apply to any hauling 
services for the purposes of stockpiling materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul charges to Owner. Owner will 
present payment within 15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 
           6. 
 

The Owner agrees to compensate the Contractor at a rate of $10/ton for hauling services when the services are for 
stockpiling of materials.  Contractor will present an invoice for the haul charges to Owner. Owner will present payment within 
15 days of the Owner's approval of invoice. 

 

 Signed on the _____ day of January 2024.  
 
 
CONTRACTOR:     DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY: 
 
 
            
Contractor Signature    Parish Administrator 
 
Eugene Washington          Michael Norton                     
Contractor Typed Name    Typed Name  
 
                        
Date      Date 
 

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is made and effective as of 
________________, 2024, by and between: 
 
 

THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, 
whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana 71052, (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Police Jury”) represented herein by its President, Rodriguez Ross; and 
 
 
SHREVEPORT GREEN (TIN:XX-XXX-0610), a private, non-profit 501(c)3 corporation 

organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana and recognized by the Internal 

Revenue Service, whose mailing address is 3625 Southern Avenue, Shreveport, 

Louisiana 71104, (hereinafter referred to as “Shreveport Green”) represented herein by 

its Executive Director, Donna Curtis, whose purpose is dedicated to improving the 

environment through public education and community beautification, litter abatement, 

and recycling projects.  

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury has sponsored an annual “Household Hazardous Waste Collection 
Day” for the past few years; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury has authorized and budgeted funds to organize and conduct a 
“Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day” in 2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury and Shreveport Green desire to enter into a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement to conduct the “Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day” on February 17, 2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly and validly authorized 
by the parties hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the state 
and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each 
other, with the United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or 
individual; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Police Jury and the Shreveport Green each agree to perform their 
respective obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the conditions, covenants and 
procedures set forth herein as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to Article 
VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter into this 
Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict 
therewith.  
 

Page 75



SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.  The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury hereunder 
is for the Police Jury and the Shreveport Green to work cooperatively to develop a Household Hazardous 
Waste Collection Day. The undertakings of the Police Jury described herein do not represent and are not 
intended to create any indebtedness on the part of the Police Jury, but only the cooperative use of the 
funds and related activities for the development and facilitation of a Household Hazardous Waste 
Collection Day in DeSoto Parish. 
 
SECTION 1.03 Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and become 
effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective obligations of 
the parties hereto.  

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 2.01 Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. In entering into this 
Agreement, it is not the intent of the Police Jury and Shreveport Green to enter into a gratuitous transfer 
of public funds because such parties expect the expenditure of funds by the Police Jury will support the 
Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day within the meaning of La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq., and they 
will each receive something of value in return for the performance of their obligations hereunder, which 
is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, the development of a Household Hazardous Waste 

Collection Day to provide the public with an environmentally safe and manner to 
dispose of household hazardous waste and enhance the lives of parish residents by 
providing a cleaner environment; and 
 

(b) In the case of Shreveport Green, funding from the Police Jury for its staff to facilitate 
the Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day. 

 
Additionally, the Police Jury and Shreveport Green will have reciprocal obligations further described 
herein. 
 
The Police Jury and Shreveport Green further find and determine that:  

 
a) both the Police Jury and Shreveport Green have the legal authority to enter into this 

Agreement;  
 

b) the project creates a public benefit; and; 
 

c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury and Shreveport Green 
of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of public funds 
by the Police Jury. 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 3.01   
  

a) The Police Jury shall provide funding to not exceed $40,000 to Shreveport Green to 
facilitate the Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day. 

Page 76



 
b) The Police Jury shall pay Shreveport Green for costs incurred upon receipt of an 

invoice(s) with supporting documentation. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

SHREVEPORT GREEN OBLIGATIONS 
 
SECTION 4.01  Shreveport Green Obligations. 
  

a) Shreveport Green will organize and conduct the Hazardous Waste Collection Day on 
Saturday, February 17, 2024. 
 

b) Shreveport Green shall provide an invoice(s), with supporting documentation, in the 
form of contracts, invoices, cancelled checks or other acceptable documentation to 
the Police Jury. 

 

c) Shreveport Green will provide the Police Jury a final report regarding the amount of 
household waste collected on the Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day.  

 
 

ARTICLE V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction.  This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof, and in particular shall be construed liberally as necessary to 
protect and further the interests of the parties hereto.  
 
SECTION 5.02  Notices.   All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 
hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties at the following addresses:  
POLICE JURY 
 
Police Jury 
c/o Michael Norton 
Parish Administrator  
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
COMPANY 
 
Shreveport Green 
c/o Donna Curtis 
Executive Director 
3625 Southern Avenue 
Shreveport, Louisiana 71104 
 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be either hand-delivered; by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; by private 
or commercial carrier or express mail, such as Federal Express; by facsimile transmission confirmed by 
mailed written confirmation; or personally delivered to an officer of the receiving party. All such 
communications shall be mailed, sent or delivered to the address or number set forth above, or as to 

Page 77



each party at such other addresses or numbers as shall be designated by such party in a written notice 
to the other party. 
 
SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall 
be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of 
this Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the 
extent of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability.   No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement 
shall be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee of 
the Police Jury or Shreveport Green, in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor 
any official executing this Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to any 
personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification. Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision 
or exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended, or modified orally, or in any manner 
other than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment. In no event shall any rescission or amendment to this 
Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.  It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no 
person or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required by 
law, is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of the Agreement against either 
parties hereto, and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be 
solely for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their respective successors 
and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives and permitted 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 5.12  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties or obligations under 
this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other party.  
 
SECTION 5.14  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous 
agreements or understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be 
modified, changed, or altered only by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 
 

Page 78



 

WITNESSES:             DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 

 

       BY:       

 

       Name:  Rodriguez Ross   

 

       Title:  President    

 

 

   

 

 

WITNESSES:                    SHREVEPORT GREEN 

      

 

 

       BY:       

 

       Name:  Donna Curtis    

      

      Title:  Executive Director   

 

Page 79


	Top
	1.	President
	2.	Vice President
	3.	Administrator report
	4.	Chance Report
	DPPJ Report - January 2024

	5.	Financials
	December 2023 (DRAFT)

	6.	Minutes
	12-18-23 Public Hearing Minutes Document(15)
	12-18-23 Regular Meeting Minutes Document
	1-2-24 Administrative Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	1-2-24 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	1-2-24 Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	12-18-23 Special Meeting Minutes Document
	1-2-24 Special Meeting Minutes Document
	1-2-24 Solid Waste Committee Minutes Document

	7.	Service Agreements
	Revize Websites Sales Agreement DeSoto Parish Police Jury LA 240104 -LA_

	8.	SW Milage Resolution
	Call Resolution
	Notice of Election

	9.	Contract Haulers
	2024 Hauling Agreement-Freeman Trucking
	2024 Hauling Agreement-U See Me Trucking
	2024 Hauling Agreement-WJL Enterprise
	2024 Hauling Agreement-Henderson Trucking
	2024 Hauling Agreement-Louise Trucking

	10.	2023 Budget Amendments
	2023 Budget Amendments

	11.	North Louisiana Criminal
	2024 Budget N La. Criminalistics

	12.	Shreveport Green
	Shreveport Green - Hazardous Waste Collection Day CEA 2024

	Bottom

